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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Welcome to

          3  today's Finance Committee hearing.  I apologize for

          4  the delay, but myself, as well as other members were

          5  in certain meetings discussing the calendar of

          6  today, and important legislative business.

          7                 My name is David Weprin, and I Chair

          8  the Finance Committee.  With me are a number of my

          9  colleagues and more will be coming in.  We have

         10  Council Member Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx;

         11  our Majority Leader, Council Member Joel Rivera from

         12  the Bronx; Council Member Gale Brewer from

         13  Manhattan; Council Member Mike Nelson from Brooklyn;

         14  and Council Member Christine Quinn from Manhattan,

         15  who will be back.

         16                 Today we are conducting our first

         17  hearing on Intro. No. 435,- -  Did I say Council

         18  Member Mike Nelson from Brooklyn, okay, Council

         19  Member Mike Nelson from Brooklyn, Chair of

         20  Subcommittee, okay, of this Committee.

         21                 Today we are conducting our first

         22  hearing on Intro. No. 435, the local law to

         23  establish the Queens Plaza Court Street BID in

         24  Queens.

         25                 Resolution 523- A, and adopted by
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          2  this Committee on September 28th of this year, set

          3  today as a hearing day so we may hear all those who

          4  may be affected by the establishment of the BIDs,

          5  who wish to speak.  After we hear from all the

          6  witnesses, we will adjourned the hearing for at

          7  least 30 days, which statutorily mandated time

          8  during which property owners objecting to the

          9  establishment of BID may file objections.

         10                 In the absence of significant

         11  objections, if the Committee and the Council can

         12  answer the following four questions affirmatively,

         13  it may adopt the local law establishing the BID. The

         14  four questions we must be prepared to answer are:

         15                 1.  Were all notices for all hearings

         16  required to be held, published and mailed as

         17  required by law, and otherwise sufficient?

         18                 2.  Does all the real property within

         19  the district boundaries benefit from the

         20  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         21  provided by the law?

         22                 3.  Is all real property benefited by

         23  the district included within the district?

         24                 4.  Is the establishment of the

         25  district in the best interest of the public?
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          2                 If the Committee finds in the

          3  affirmative on these four questions, and the number

          4  of objections required to prevent the creation of

          5  the BID are not filed, then the legislation can be

          6  adopted.

          7                 We will also be considering two Land

          8  Use items, a Section 202 project for supportive

          9  housing for the elderly in the Bronx; and a project

         10  for low- income families in Lower Manhattan. Council

         11  Member Madeline Provenzano, who is here, and Council

         12  Member Margarita Lopez, whose district these

         13  projects are, are in support of them.

         14                 We will now hear from David Pechefsky

         15  of Finance staff to comment on the Land Use

         16  proposals.  But before he starts, I will give

         17  Council Member Madeline Provenzano, who is the

         18  Council member from one of the districts an

         19  opportunity, if she likes, to make a statement on

         20  the proposed project in the Bronx.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Thank

         22  you, Mr. Chair. I am glad to see this on the agenda

         23  today.  I have followed it through, it is long

         24  history.  It is a Department of Housing and Urban

         25  Development project.  And it normally follows a long
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          2  and tenuous course.  And we had some ups and downs,

          3  but thankfully, we are through them all.  And it is

          4  housing for the elderly, which is sorely needed, I

          5  know across the City, but particularly in my

          6  district.  So I am really pleased that it has

          7  reached this point.

          8                 I know the Finance Division has

          9  worked very hard on it.  City Planning worked hard,

         10  HPD, and I want to give credit to all of them.  And

         11  again, just happy that we are at this point and can

         12  move forward.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  And I got your

         14  support of the tax exemptions?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Okay, thank you.

         17    Mr. Pechefsky.

         18                 MR. PECHEFSKY:  Good morning.  I am

         19  David Pechefsky from the City Council Finance

         20  Division.  As Chairman Weprin said, before you are

         21  two resolutions granting tax exemptions to two

         22  affordable housing developments as requested by HPD.

         23                 The one is the one that Council

         24  Member Provenzano was speaking of, 202, Federal

         25  Housing for the Elderly, in her district.  And this
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          2  is getting the standard tax exemption that such

          3  projects get to keep affordability.  And like all

          4  202s is supported with both capital and operating

          5  subsidies from HUD.

          6                 The other one in Council Member

          7  Lopez's district was developed under the

          8  Inclusionary Housing Program.  It is a seven- unit

          9  building on East 28th Street, and Phipps Houses is

         10  the owner, and it also provides affordable housing

         11  for low- income families.  And the conditions of it

         12  is that it will be affordable in perpetuity, as

         13  required by the Inclusionary Housing Program.

         14                 I will be happy to take any of your

         15  questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Are there any

         17  questions for Mr. Pechefsky?  Council Member Brewer,

         18  and we have also been joined by Council Member Eric

         19  Gioia from Queens, who I know will have a comment

         20  before we proceed on the proposed BID in his

         21  district, the Queens Plaza Court Square Business

         22  Improvement District; and Council Member Mike

         23  McMahon from Staten Island, we have also been joined

         24  by.  Council Member Brewer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.
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          2  David, I have a question about the Inclusionary

          3  Zoning.  I am sure, I support it, but I want to

          4  understand it, since I am extremely familiar with

          5  that program, there are a lot of them in my

          6  district.

          7                 One of the questions is, so this is

          8  the off- site aspect of inclusionary zoning for

          9  another building, that is why I am confused.

         10                 MR. PECHEFSKY:  Yes, that is correct.

         11  This has usually been the case when this program has

         12  been utilized.  There is a recipient building that

         13  got a zoning bonus, and this is the off- site,

         14  affordable component that enabled that bonus.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and the

         16  building that got more FAR as a result is where?

         17                 MR. PECHEFSKY:  It is on Sixth

         18  Avenue, let me just see what the cross street is.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And I was

         20  wondering who the developer - -

         21                 MR. PECHEFSKY:  It is on Sixth Avenue

         22  and 28th Street.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  And do

         24  you know who the developer is?  Obviously, Phipps is

         25  the non- profit for the inclusionary zoning, but who
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          2  is the developer of Sixth Avenue building?

          3                 MR. PECHEFSKY:  Mack Lowe is the

          4  developer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  I just

          6  want to comment.  I am a big supporter of Phipps

          7  Houses.  But you know they are converting, even as a

          8  non- profit, other buildings that are part of the

          9  Mitchell- Lama program.  And I know that many people

         10  have been calling me, even though it is not my

         11  district, because they cannot afford it under the

         12  privatization of that particular Mitchell- Lama.

         13                 So I just comment that as we pick

         14  some of these non- profits to do the inclusionary

         15  portion of a clusionary zoning project, we should

         16  realize that there is history to some of these.

         17  People are not able to stay in some of their Phipps

         18  Housing buildings.

         19                 The second question is, do you know

         20  within that project if there was a push to have the

         21  inclusionary zoning on site, or that wasn't an

         22  issue?

         23                 MR. PECHEFSKY:  I don't know the

         24  history, what the terms of the deal was.  But it is

         25  typical that it is off- site.  I mean, that seems to
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          2  be generally - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know, I

          4  don't like them, I like them on- site, that is why I

          5  was asking.

          6                 And then the first question is

          7  regarding in Madeline Provenzano's, or maybe she can

          8  answer it, I just did not know who the developer is,

          9  the non- profit developer for the 202?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  The,

         11  well, sponsoring is Reign.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Reign.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  I don't

         14  know who the developer is.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Well, Reign,

         16  that is what I wanted to know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  Thank

         19  you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you.  Any

         21  further questions for Mr. Pechefsky on either of

         22  these two projects? Seeing none, thank you.

         23                 We will proceed for a vote at the end

         24  of the meeting, when we have a quorum.

         25                 Okay, we will now hear from the
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          2  Department of Small Business Services, (SBS).

          3  Before we hear from Mr. Glader from the SBS, I would

          4  just like to ask Council Member Eric Gioia, if he

          5  would like to make a statement about the proposed

          6  BID located in his district.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman, and thank you for your leadership on this

          9  issue, and for all that you do for the City every

         10  day as the Chairman of the Finance Committee.

         11                 I think if you were to look around

         12  the entire world, on every continent, you could not

         13  find a better patch of land anywhere in the entire

         14  world as Long Island City.  Its breathtaking views

         15  of the Manhattan Skyline, it has, perhaps the Upper

         16  West Side of Manhattan would rival it.  But I am

         17  talking about a place with more potential.  The West

         18  Side has arrived, Council Member Brewer, and Long

         19  Island City is on the way up, with really

         20  breathtaking views of the Manhattan Skyline, with

         21  easy access to mass transportation, the 7, the E,

         22  the F, the N, the R, the V, the G.  With easy access

         23  to highways, whether it be the Long Island

         24  Expressway, the Midtown Tunnel, the Queens Borough

         25  Bridge, the Williamsburg Bridge, or even the

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  Brooklyn Queens Expressway.  You can get just about

          3  anywhere in a tri state area relatively quickly from

          4  Long Island City.  In fact, the geographic center of

          5  New York is a mere one mile east of Long Island City

          6  in Woodside.

          7                 Yet, for very long, for far too long,

          8  when you got off the Queens Borough Bridge, known to

          9  some of our neighbors in New York as the 59th Street

         10  Bridge, it was not a welcoming sign. In fact, many

         11  people would say to me, well, I got off the bridge

         12  and my first thought was I should hit the gas and

         13  get out of there on my way to the airport or to the

         14  Hamptons, or to a Met game, or to a tennis match.

         15                 What we are here to say today, is

         16  that that is going to change.  We are taking the

         17  welcome mat of Queens, we are dusting it off, and we

         18  are saying, welcome, Queens is open for business.

         19  Queens is open for you to move in, Queens is a great

         20  place to live, to raise a family, or to start a

         21  business. Already in the past, I would say, three

         22  years, we have seen more than in the past 30 years

         23  in terms of really, just an explosion  -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Coinciding with

         25  your term on the City Council.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Well there has

          3  been some overlap, whether it be Met Life expansion,

          4  Silver Cup Studios expansion, City Group's

          5  expansion, the very exciting developments in Queens

          6  West, the proposed Olympic Village, or other private

          7  development along the waterfront.

          8                 We have recaptured our waterfront,

          9  and I think in years to come, we will be able to

         10  bike or roller blade or jog straight up the East

         11  River from Newtown Creek past the Triboro Bridge,

         12  the same as you can from the Battery all the way up

         13  the Upper West Side of Manhattan today.  And this

         14  BID is crucial to that.

         15                 What you have are hard working

         16  people, hard working businesses who have banned

         17  together and they say, working together we can

         18  accomplish things here.  We can change the

         19  streetscapes, we can change, we can clean the

         20  neighborhood, we can rid of graffiti, and working

         21  together with government, we can make it a better

         22  place.  I commend them on their efforts.  I am fully

         23  supportive of this effort to create a BID, and I

         24  hope that my colleagues will be as well.

         25                 Thank you, once again, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

          3  Council member.  I see that we have also been joined

          4  by a few more colleagues.  We have Council Member

          5  Leroy Comrie from Queens, and Council Member

          6  Margarita Lopez from Manhattan.

          7                 But, Council Member Lopez, before you

          8  came in we heard from Mr. Pechefsky on the two

          9  proposed partial tax exemptions, one for a project

         10  in your district.  We are not going to vote on that

         11  until the end of the meeting, but I just wanted to

         12  give you an opportunity, if you like, either now or

         13  later to make a statement on that proposed project,

         14  which I believe is for the elderly, right?  No, that

         15  is for lower- income families in your district?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes.  Thank

         17  you for giving me the opportunity, Mr. Chairman, to

         18  speak on this issue.  As all of us know, we are

         19  desperate for maintaining whatever affordable

         20  housing we have in the City, and to create more.

         21  And this particular body, always has been a champion

         22  on creating and supporting affordable housing in

         23  this city.

         24                 This particular project that we are

         25  talking about is going to maintain the affordability
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          2  of this building.  It is not going to be a new

          3  development, it is just to maintain the one that is

          4  in there right now.  If we do not approve this tax

          5  exempt, the affordability will be gone, and it would

          6  be like gone with the wind, I guess.  I know that

          7  this body understands the intricate problems that we

          8  have with affordable housing, the production of it

          9  that day- to- day is more difficult to achieve.

         10  Therefore, approving this particular tax exempt will

         11  go a long way to maintain the affordability in

         12  housing in this particular place.  And I thank the

         13  Chairman for taking this issue under his wing.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

         16  Council member. Mr. Glader.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLADER:  Thank

         18  you, Mr. Chairman.  I think I cleared the house.

         19                 Anyway, good morning, Mr. Chairman

         20  and members of the Finance Committee.  I am George

         21  Glader, Assistant Commissioner at the Department of

         22  Small Business Services, (SBS). SBS supports the

         23  establishment of the Queens Plaza Court Square

         24  Business Improvement District in the Borough of

         25  Queens.
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          2                 Geographically the proposed Queens

          3  Plaza Court Square BID encompasses properties

          4  fronting on both sides of Jackson Avenue from 45th

          5  Avenue, Thompson Avenue, the Queens Plaza, and on

          6  Queens Plaza from Northern Boulevard, Jackson Avenue

          7  to 21st Street.

          8                 Services to be provided in the

          9  district include street and sidewalk maintenance,

         10  graffiti removal, public safety services, marketing

         11  and promotion of the area, administration and other

         12  services as may be required for the promotion and

         13  enhancement of the district.  The Queens Plaza Court

         14  Square District Management Association will manage

         15  the district.  The budget for the first year of

         16  operation is $300,000.

         17                 As required by law, the Queens Plaza

         18  Court Square BID Steering Committee mailed the

         19  summary of the City Council resolution to each owner

         20  of real property within the proposed district at the

         21  address shown on the latest City Assessment Roll,

         22  and other persons as they are registered with the

         23  City to receive tax bills concerning real property

         24  within the district, and the tenants of each

         25  building within the proposed district.  In addition,
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          2  SBS arranged for the publication of a copy of the

          3  summary of the resolution at least once in the City

          4  Record.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Glader.  Any questions?  Seeing none, I think we

          8  will just try to gather up our members.

          9                 Oh, we have others scheduled to

         10  testify in behalf of the BID.  Okay, I would like to

         11  call as a panel, each one will get an opportunity to

         12  speak, but just for expediting coming up, and back

         13  and forth, if they could all come up together, and

         14  they are all listed as testifying in favor of the

         15  BID.  And that is Gary Kesner, David Brause, Michael

         16  Reale, and Ellie Jurado Nieves.  You guys decide

         17  amongst yourselves who wants to go first, okay.

         18                 MR. KESNER:  Good morning, Mr. Chair

         19  and members of the City Council.  My name is Gary

         20  Kesner, and I am the Executive Vice- President of

         21  Silver Cup Studios in Long Island City.  I also

         22  serve as the Chair of the Long Island City Business

         23  Development Corporation, and I am a member of the

         24  BID Steering Committee.  I want to thank you for the

         25  opportunity to testify in favor of the Queens Plaza
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          2  Court Square BID.

          3                 I would also like to thank our

          4  Councilman, Eric Gioia, for all his support of the

          5  BID, and for the Development Corporation's efforts.

          6                 The proposed Queens Plaza Court

          7  Square BID extends along Jackson Avenue from Court

          8  Square North to Queens Plaza.  It runs along both

          9  sides of Queens Plaza from Jackson Avenue and

         10  Northern Boulevard to 21st Street.  It extends along

         11  a few of the adjacent side streets, which have

         12  frontage on the Plaza or Jackson Avenue.  The BID

         13  boundaries encompasses the main spine of the Long

         14  Island City special mixed- use district that was

         15  approved by the City Council in 2001 to help spur

         16  the development of a fourth central business

         17  district in New York City.  This area serves as the

         18  gateway to Queens, and is currently undergoing a

         19  transformation into a healthy, mixed- use district.

         20                 The proposed BID area is also the

         21  geographic center of several City initiatives.  The

         22  Department of City Planning is undertaking the

         23  Queens Plaza Design Study looking at such items as

         24  lighting, landscaping, and way finding.  The City

         25  owned Municipal Garage on the Plaza will be
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          2  converted to a state of- the- art office building by

          3  Tishman Spire.

          4                 Citi Bank has announced the

          5  construction of a second office tower, and the

          6  Metropolitan Life Insurance Company has relocated

          7  more than 1,500 jobs to the area.  The Center for

          8  Court Innovations, Queens Plaza Community Clean- Up

          9  Project is also underway.

         10                 It was the City's initial

         11  negotiations with Met Life that activated the

         12  current BID effort.  One of Met Life's concerns was

         13  the perceived lack of security and cleanliness of

         14  Queens Plaza.  The City Administration and the

         15  Queens Borough President's Office asked the Local

         16  Development Corporation, LICBDC, to explore the

         17  formation of a BID within the area. Further

         18  discussions with City Planning as to their efforts,

         19  helped define the area to include a stretch of

         20  Jackson Avenue down to the Citi Corp building on

         21  Court Square.

         22                 LICBDC outreached efforts are listed

         23  interests from industrial companies, such as Gray

         24  Bar and Venus Trimming, and increased security,

         25  especially in the evening.  Thus extending the BID
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          2  area down to 21st Street.

          3                 The goal of this BID is consistent

          4  with, and supports all the City's efforts underway

          5  in Long Island City to foster reinvestment and

          6  redevelopment.  The BID plan has the support of a

          7  diverse range of businesses in the area, from

          8  property owners to industrial, commercial, and

          9  retail establishments.   The BID services will

         10  benefit all of the workers, merchants, and visitors

         11  to the Queens Plaza District. The BID program

         12  coordinated with the ongoing public infrastructure

         13  and quality of life efforts will ensure the

         14  attractiveness and viability of this wonderful

         15  mixed- use district.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 MR. BRAUSE:  Thanks, Gary.  My name

         18  is David Brause of Brause Reality.  I am the

         19  Chairman of the BID Steering Committee, and an owner

         20  of approximately 700,000 square feet of commercial

         21  space in this district.  I am pleased to be here

         22  today and to have the chance to express my support

         23  for the proposed creation of the Queens Plaza Court

         24  Square Business Improvement District.

         25                 I would also like to take this
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          2  opportunity to thank the leadership of the City

          3  Council, this Committee, and in particular, Council

          4  Member Eric Gioia, for its foresight and support,

          5  and encouraging the renaissance of Long Island City.

          6                 Brause Reality developed and

          7  successfully leased to Met Life the entire block of

          8  Queens Plaza North between 27th and 28th Streets,

          9  which is also a part of this Business Improvement

         10  District.

         11                 I have also been a Board member of

         12  the Union Square Partnership BID for about six

         13  years, and have seen first hand the substantial

         14  benefits of creating BIDs in commercial areas in New

         15  York City.  The Queens Plaza Court Square Business

         16  Improvement District Budget was determined by our

         17  Steering Committee after reviewing the necessary

         18  services indicated in the 308 surveys we sent out to

         19  property owners and tenants.  We reviewed proposals

         20  for sanitation, safety, and landscaping, and then

         21  estimated an annual cost for such services.

         22  Marketing costs and administrative costs were added

         23  to determine an annual budget of $300,000.  The

         24  amount was also determined by the willingness of the

         25  BID property owners to each pay a certain amount.
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          2  The larger owners, such as Met Life and Citi Group,

          3  took on a large portion, actually 54 percent of the

          4  budget, and therefore, allowed smaller owners'

          5  assessments to remain low.

          6                 Our BID services were determined by

          7  the 308- survey packet sent out to both BID property

          8  owners and tenants.  The survey asked those owners

          9  and tenants to rank the importance of services to

         10  their businesses, such as sanitation, street

         11  maintenance, security, promotional materials and

         12  capital improvements.  The survey also asked for

         13  areas of concern, such as cleanliness of streets,

         14  graffiti, safety, parking facilities, street

         15  vendors, and traffic issues.

         16                 There are 85 properties in the BID,

         17  and these properties are owned by 65 distinct

         18  property owners.  The survey results from the owners

         19  are as follows:

         20                 The owners ranked sanitation, street

         21  maintenance, and security to be of strong importance

         22  to improving their business.

         23                 Capital improvements, especially

         24  lighting, were deemed of strong importance, as well.

         25                 There are 218 individual businesses
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          2  in the BID. The tenant surveys found that sanitation

          3  and capital improvements were of significant

          4  importance.   And they regarded safety, cleanliness

          5  of streets, traffic, the availability of parking,

          6  and graffiti, all issues of concern, as well.

          7                 Based upon our survey findings the

          8  Steering Committee determined that sanitation,

          9  security, and marketing services were to be the

         10  focus of our BID goals.

         11                 Michael Reale will next take you

         12  through the outreach process.  I urge you to vote to

         13  approve the creation of our BID as soon as possible,

         14  and to allow us to begin improving our neighborhood

         15  very quickly.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:   Mr. Reale.

         18                 MR. REALE:  Good morning.  My name is

         19  Michael Reale.  I am the Queens Plaza Court Square

         20  BID Project Manager from the Long Island City

         21  Business Development Corporation.

         22                 I would like to talk to you today a

         23  little bit about the outreach that was performed on

         24  behalf of the Queens Plaza Court Square BID.  Our

         25  BID outreach officially began in June 2003, as David

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  said, when we mailed out 308 surveys to all of the

          3  85 property owners, 218 business tenants, and 29

          4  residents located within the BID footprint.

          5                 After we mailed them out, we also

          6  then went door to- door with additional surveys and

          7  consent forms in an attempt to get in contact with

          8  any of the tenants and property owners that we

          9  could, to have them fill out the survey.  Now after

         10  the survey was sent out, we got the results, we

         11  followed up with residents, tenants, and property

         12  owners by sending an informational letter, which

         13  basically described the means by which a BID is

         14  organized, and specifically notified the interested

         15  parties that a BID was being proposed, and to make

         16  them aware of the existence of the Steering

         17  Committee.  And it also identified the different

         18  positive effects the BID would have on the community

         19  and the area within the BID.  And in this mailing,

         20  another consent form was sent out.

         21                 At this time, towards the end of

         22  August, we started to prepare for our two public

         23  hearings.  Our first public hearing was held on

         24  September 24th with invitations being sent out on

         25  September 9th.  The invitations were attached with a
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          2  consent form, and the invitations included the BID

          3  meeting, time, date, address, and the subject of

          4  discussion.  And also before the BID hearing we

          5  placed phone calls to all the property owners and

          6  tenants that we had phone numbers for to try to

          7  persuade them to attend the meeting.  In all, I

          8  believe, approximately 50 individuals showed up at

          9  our first public hearing.

         10                 Now for our second public hearing, we

         11  had two different types of invitations.  But all the

         12  invitations were attached with a consent form.  And

         13  this time all property owners were mailed, along

         14  with their invitation a BID assessment fee.

         15  Basically, giving them an idea of the amount they

         16  would be accountable for, if the BID were to be

         17  enacted.

         18                 The difference between the two

         19  invitations, one was simply thanking, one went out

         20  to those who attended the first public meeting and

         21  thank them, and urge them to come again.  The second

         22  one went out to property owners and tenants who

         23  hadn't come to the first one, and urge them to come

         24  again.  And once again we placed phone calls before

         25  the second public, and we also went door- to- door
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          2  to all the businesses to try to persuade them to

          3  attend.  We also created a press release, which was

          4  released to 10 different newspapers, including the

          5  Times Ledger, Astoria Times, Crane's New York

          6  Business, Queens Gazette, and the list goes on.

          7                 So after our second public hearing, I

          8  attempted to contact as many property owners as

          9  possible by using the Department of Finance Records,

         10  going door- to- door, and speaking to other property

         11  owners who might know who owns such and such

         12  property.  I believe we were successful, we

         13  contacted all but eight property owners.  And of the

         14  eight property owners that we were not able to

         15  contact directly, the mailings that we sent to them

         16  were not being returned because of faulty address.

         17                 So after that, in January 2004, we

         18  sent out a final outreach letter, which basically

         19  went out to all the property owners who had not

         20  returned a consent form indicating whether they were

         21  for or against the BID.  And it just let them know

         22  that we had sent out four prior mailings and that we

         23  urge them to send in the final consent form.  And

         24  also once again, we sent out a BID fee assessment

         25  sheet with this.
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          2                 So in closing, just to wrap up, there

          3  were five separate mailings, six if you include the

          4  mandatory public hearing notice for today's hearing.

          5    All the mailings included consent form, there were

          6  three door- to- door distributions, telephone calls

          7  were place before each public meeting, and a press

          8  release was distributed to 10 different newspapers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you, Mr.

         10  Reale.  Ms. Nieves.

         11                 MS. JURADO- NIEVES:  Good morning.

         12  My name is Ellie Juarado- Nieves, and I am an

         13  Attorney with the Metropolitan Life Insurance

         14  Company.

         15                 Met Life was established in 1868 in a

         16  two- room office in New York City.  And since its

         17  inception, Met Life has developed a very impressive

         18  history from funding the Empire State Building in

         19  Rockefeller Center to construction affordable

         20  housing for working class residents, to being the

         21  first insurance company of paid claims following the

         22  horrific attacks of 9/11.

         23                 Met Life has worked hard to not just

         24  be a corporate entity in New York City, but to

         25  invest its expertise and resources in areas where it
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          2  can truly make a difference.

          3                 Today, in 2004, Met Life is committed

          4  to the economic and community development of Long

          5  Island City.  In 2001, when we were looking for a

          6  location to move our associates, Long Island City

          7  presented an attractive and affordable option.  It

          8  allowed us to maintain a strong presence in New York

          9  City.  It has close proximity to Manhattan, and it

         10  was near transportation for all of our associates

         11  who commute from the five boroughs, Long Island, and

         12  New Jersey.

         13                 Met Life state- of- the- art office

         14  building sits on Queens Plaza North and it allows us

         15  to have a strong presence on the street, and it

         16  blends in well with the community.  We recently

         17  completed the transition from our Manhattan offices

         18  and over 1,500 of our associates now work out of our

         19  Long Island City offices.  Our move is just another

         20  chapter in Met Life's rich history in New York City.

         21                 We expect that our move will help to

         22  transform Long Island City into one of New York

         23  City's premier business districts.  As a Steering

         24  Committee member for the BID, the BID presents a

         25  unique opportunity for Met Life to work with
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          2  businesses in Long Island City, and to illustrate

          3  our commitment to public service.

          4                 Met Life wishes to continue our

          5  tradition of community involvement, and to continue

          6  serving as an anchor for change and improvement in

          7  Long Island City.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you.  I

         10  also have a letter from Comptroller William

         11  Thompson, addressed to me, dated October 12th, 2004,

         12  and I will read it into the record.

         13                 Dear Council Member Weprin:

         14                  "The Comptroller of the City of New

         15  York serves as an ex officio member for the Board of

         16  Directors on all Business Improvement Districts.

         17  During my term as Comptroller, I have found these

         18  public/private partnerships to be effective in

         19  developing new and innovative programs to support

         20  local business. BIDs have a proven track record of

         21  success in a broad range of communities across our

         22  city.

         23                 Efforts to incubate additional

         24  Business Improvement Districts deserve the support

         25  of all New Yorkers interested in improving the

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  business climate along our neighborhood commercial

          3  streets that are such a crucial part of community

          4  life.

          5                 I am especially pleased to support

          6  the creation of the Queens Plaza/Court Square BID

          7  because I believe this new BID will contribute to

          8  the ongoing rebirth of Long Island City. Anchored by

          9  the Citibank Tower on Court Square, and the new Met

         10  Life Building on Queens Plaza North this new BID has

         11  the potential to become one of the premier BIDs in

         12  the city.

         13                 For these reasons, I urge the Council

         14  to pass Intro. 435."

         15                 Very truly your,

         16                 William C. Thompson

         17                 Comptroller

         18                 I would like to ask if there is

         19  anyone else in the audience that would like to make

         20  a statement either support or opposed to the

         21  proposed BID, at this time?  Do any of my colleagues

         22  have any questions for any of the panelists?

         23                 We have also been joined by a few

         24  colleagues since the last round of introductions.

         25  We have Council Member Helen Sears from Queens;
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          2  Council Member Mike McMahon from Staten Island; and

          3  Council Member Simcha Felder from Brooklyn, who I

          4  believe has a question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Not really a

          6  question, I am in favor of the BID, but I find it

          7  interesting that you left Ms. Nieves for last in

          8  testifying.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Well I left it

         10  up to them, and they decided the order.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes, that is

         12  just the point, David.

         13                 MR. BRAUSE:  I understood it.

         14                 MR. KESNER:  In baseball, the fourth

         15  battery is the best, usually the clean- up hitter,

         16  and that is why we left her for that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Well said, Mr.

         18  Kesner.  Mr. Chair, may I have just, Mr. Chair, well

         19  I just have, thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Council Member

         21  Gioia.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you, and

         23  thank you, Council Member Felder, and I echo the

         24  words of Mr. Kesner.  Ellie is a clean- up hitter on

         25  anybody's team.  And thank you, for your not only
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          2  testimony today, but also, Met Life shows

          3  continually that you can be a company in this city

          4  and do both good, and still do well.  I thank them

          5  for investing in Long Island City. And I think if

          6  you look at the history of Met Life, you will see

          7  that Met Life really, not only is a good corporate

          8  citizen, but is also a leading economic indicator

          9  for real estate.  And if you look at what happened

         10  at Madison Park, it is 11 Madison Park, and you

         11  think about what that looked like 20 years ago, and

         12  now with Tobbler and Denny Meyer investing there, I

         13  hope that you will bring him with you to invest.

         14  And I think Mr. Brause should be very happy to show

         15  him some spaces to put a Denny Meyer restaurant at

         16  the Queens side of the Queens Borough Bridge.  And I

         17  thank Met Life for coming and for their investment

         18  in our neighborhood.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Thank you,

         21  Council member. Okay, we are going to call the vote.

         22  Mr. Caras, can you bring one more member in?  Okay,

         23  we are going to couple the two proposed tax

         24  exemptions in the two districts.  We are not going

         25  to take a vote on the proposed BID because we are
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          2  going to wait the statutory 30- day period, and to

          3  see what comments we get and other written

          4  statements, and we will vote on that at a later

          5  date.

          6                 But I am going to ask for a vote on

          7  the two partial tax exemptions, one in Council

          8  Member Provenzano's District, and the other one in

          9  Council Member Lopez's District, and I am going to

         10  couple the items.  Would you call the roll?

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK::   Weprin.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lopez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Provenzano.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Rivera.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Because of

         23  Ellie Jurado, I am in support of it.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Brewer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I vote aye,
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          2  but always with a provision, and inclusionary zoning

          3  is a good thing, but one never gets enough

          4  affordable units with the amount of FAR built in the

          5  primary buildings.  I vote aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gioia.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  I vote yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  McMahon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Leave to

         12  explain my vote, Mr. Chairman.  I think we can all

         13  understand that with his pending nuptials this

         14  weekend, that Council Member Gioia could be somewhat

         15  prone to hyperbole when he states that on God's

         16  great green earth, the finest spot of all is Long

         17  Island City.  Because clearly, what he meant to say

         18  was, but for Staten Island's North Shore, Long

         19  Island City is the greatest spot on God's great

         20  earth.

         21                 But we are understanding of a

         22  situation, and that he is thinking of even greater

         23  things, and we wish him all good luck this weekend,

         24  and I will forgive him for that reason, and vote aye

         25  on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gallagher.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Felder.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 13 in

          9  the affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no

         10  abstentions, both items are adopted.  Council

         11  members, please sign the Committee reports. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:  I am going to

         14  keep the roll open for a reasonable period of time

         15  to allow the members in the building and in the

         16  surrounding areas to come in and sign the Committee

         17  report and express their vote.  Other than that, we

         18  are adjourned.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Is this on or

         20  off?  Hello, hello, it is on.  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote is now at

         22  14.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         24  Sanders.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Yes to all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          3  Gennaro.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Yes on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote is now 16 in

          6  the affirmative.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            38

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, SHARON CONOVER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 13th day of October 2004.

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          SHARON CONOVER

         25

                                                            39

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, SHARON CONOVER, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              SHARON CONOVER

         23

         24

         25

